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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Dear Investor,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to present MCB Pakistan Stock Market
Fund accounts review for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Economy and Money Market Review

Fiscal year 2022 (FY22) remained a difficult year for Pakistan as the country faced multiple
challenges on macroeconomic front along with political uncertainty. While the economy
weathered the Covid challenge relatively well, reopening of global economies and supply chain
disruptions stimulated a spike in global commodity prices increasing pressure on trade deficit.
Russia- Ukraine war pushed the commodity prices even further, exacerbating the already
widening trade deficit with highest ever import bill during the year. A spike in energy and food
prices coupled with a weak exchange rate led to a sharp pickup in domestic inflation. Commodity
price led Inflationary trends were also visible in global economies particularly US and Eurozone
and consequent tightening has raised fears of a broader recession.

Pakistan’s economy was already coping with macroeconomic challenges and the political
upheaval further aggravated the situation. The elevated political noise led to populist measures
like fuel and power subsidies undermining the much needed fiscal adjustments. In addition, an
unscheduled change of country’s leadership and ensuring political uncertainty led to delay in
policy actions and adjustments needed for IMF program.

The country posted a current account deficit of USD 15.2bn in 11MFY22 compared to a deficit of
USD 1.1bn in the corresponding period last year. This was the largest CAD since FY18, when
country witnessed a deficit of USD 15.9bn in first eleven months of the fiscal year. The
deterioration came in primarily on the back of higher imports which grew by 36.5% in 11MFY22
compared to export growth of 26.7%. Trade Deficit increased by 45.5% to USD 36.1bn compared
to USD 24.8bn in the same period last year. The unprecedented increase in imports mainly came
from historic high prices of our commodity basket including crude oil, palm oil, coal coupled with
one time vaccines imports.

Foreign exchange reserves of central bank declined by USD 7.4bn in FY22 on account of higher
current account deficit and debt repayments. In addition, delay in IMF program led to slowdown in
other foreign inflows which dragged the reserves to USD 9.8bn, implying an import cover of 1.7
months. These outflows coupled with widening current account deficit led PKR to weaken by
23.0% against USD since start of the fiscal year.

Inflation remained highly concerning as rising commodities continued to create challenges for
policy makers. Headline inflation represented by CPI averaged 12.1% in FY22 compared to 8.9%
in FY21. The rise mainly came from higher food prices, elevated energy costs (both electricity
and fuel) and second round impact of PKR depreciation, which kept the prices of imported
commodities high. Core inflation as measured by Non Food Non Energy also depicted an
upwards trend with an increase of 12.3% in June 2022 compared to 6.9% in June 2021.
Expectations of above 20% in the next fiscal year along with weak fiscal framework, led SBP to
increase policy rate by a cumulative 625bps to 13.75% in the fiscal year to counter inflationary
pressures and slowdown the overall aggregate demand. It further increased policy rate by 125
basis points to 15% in July-22.

On the fiscal side, FBR tax collection increased by 29.1% in FY22 to PKR 6,125bn compared to
PKR 4,744bn during the same period last year. This exceeded the target by 25bn. The improved
tax collection was primarily on the back of higher customs duty and sales tax collected due to
higher imports.

Secondary markets yields have increased significantly in FY22 as SBP started the monetary

tightening cycle. The depreciation in the rupee along with persistently high energy prices will add
pressure to inflation and we expect average inflation numbers to remain elevated in medium term.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Bond yields for tenors of 3 years, 5 years and 10 years witnessed a rise of 4.5%, 3.4% and 3.0%,
respectively during the period.

Equity Market Review

After posting a healthy gain of 38% in FY21, the benchmark KSE-100 Index corrected by 12.3%
in FY22, losing 5,815 points to end the year at 41,541 points. The market remained volatile
throughout the year, but took a downturn in the second half of the fiscal year as Russia-Ukraine
war worsened several macroeconomic indicators fueling concern over external account position.
The widening current account deficit, rapidly depleting reserves (PKR touching an all-time low of
PKR211/USD), downgrade of Pakistan’s outlook to negative by Moody’s, and delay in the
approval of IMF’s sixth and seventh review created default fears among the investors. In addition,
a high inflationary environment caused by a global commodity super cycle, rupee depreciation,
and rising interest rates further added to the investors’ woes. Moreover, the budget also proved to
be a negative event for the market, incorporating painful but necessary measures to enhance
revenue collection and control expenditures in line with the IMF’s direction.

Fertilizer and Chemical were the outperformers during the year, posting a return of 13.9% and
6.1%, respectively. On the contrary, Cement remained the worst performing sector with a
negative return of -43.8% thanks to rising international coal prices (+189% YoY to USD 332/ton).
Average traded volume and value during FY22 went down by 45% (291mn shares) and value by
54% (USD 55mn), respectively.

During the year, MSCI reclassified Pakistan from the Emerging Markets Index to Frontier Markets
Index. As a result, Foreign investors offloaded USD 298mn worth of equities during FY22.
Individuals were the major buyers followed by Banks/DFls. They bought shares worth USD
157mn and USD 115mn, respectively.

FUND PERFORMANCE

During the period, PSM generated a return of -16.53% as compared to a return of -12.28%
witnessed by the KSE100 Index. Overall equity exposure stood at 94.5% on June 30, 2022. The
fund remained vigilant of the external factors and the investment strategy was maneuvered
considering the fundamental developments. The allocation was mainly held in Commercial
Banks, Cement and QOil & Gas Exploration Companies.

The Net Assets of the fund as at June 30, 2022 stood at Rs. 8,875 million as compared to Rs.
12,397 million as at June 30, 2021 registering a decrease of 28.41%.

The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit as at June 30, 2022 was Rs. 86.5039 as compared to
opening NAV of Rs. 103.6294 per unit as at June 30, 2021 registering a decrease of -17.1255 per
unit.

Economy & Market — Future Outlook

The government has taken several harsh steps including increasing petroleum, electricity and gas
prices to meet the IMF prior conditions. It has also increased interest rate to 15% and made
changes in the FY23 Budget to targets primary fiscal surplus in FY23. These steps have led to a
successful staff level agreement with IMF and should pave the way for the disbursement of USD
1.2bn from the fund under the combined 7th and 8th review of the Extended Fund Facility (EFF).
The government was also able to convince IMF to increase funding by USD 1 billion to USD 7
billion and extend the duration till June 2023 compared to September 2022 earlier. IMF program
shall provide stability to the external account and provide a window to policy makers requiring
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continued fiscal discipline and measured trade account policies in the short term while focus on
the economic policies that can support sustainable growth in the long term.

Pakistan GDP growth clocked at 6.0% in FY22 with Agricultural, Industrial and Services sector
grew by 4.4%, 7.2% and 6.2% respectively. However, we expect GDP growth to sharply decline
to a range of 2.5-3.0% in FY23. The monetary tightening and rupee devaluation would lead to
slowdown in economy and would impact industrial growth. The government is also focusing on
controlling imports to curtail current account deficit which would affect services sector growth.

The international commodities have eased from their recent high but energy prices remain
stubbornly high. We expect the government to keep a tight leash on imports and discourage
unnecessary dollar outflows. The imports are expected to decrease by 14% YoY to USD 63bn as
we will witness volumetric compression in several segments of the economy. Thus we expect the
current account deficit to ease to USD 7.6bn (2.0% of GDP) in FY23 compared to expected
current account deficit of USD 16.5bn (4.2% of GDP) in FY22.

Successful resumption of the IMF program will be a key prerequisite to keep the financial account
in positive zone as we await funding commitment from friendly countries. Sustaining remittances
along with bilateral and multilateral flows would also be crucial in managing our external position.
USD/PKR is trading in a range of 225-230 due to ensuing political uncertainty and delay in IMF
tranche. We expect Rupee to recover post disbursement of IMF tranche along with receipts from
friendly countries. We expect however USD/PKR to depreciate by the close of fiscal year to 235.

CPI based inflation for June 2022 clocked at 21.3% on the back of increase in petroleum and
electricity prices as the relief measures announced by the previous government were reversed.
We will witness the second round impact of currency devaluation and petroleum price increase
which will keep inflation elevated for the remainder of the year. We expect FY23 average inflation
to clock at 21.8%. SBP increased the policy rate to 15% to slowdown aggregate demand and
ward off inflationary pressures. Increasing interest rate to unnecessarily higher level impacts
fiscal position and does little to tame cost push inflation. We thus SBP to balance monetary
tightening and fiscal costs by maintaining negative interest rates

From capital market perspective, particularly equities, the correction in stock prices has further
opened up valuation. The market has priced in the interest rate increase and currency
depreciation. Market cap to GDP ratio has declined to 10.1%, a discount of 52% from its historical
average. Similarly, risk premiums are close to 8.3%, compared to historical average of 2.2%
signifying deep discount at which market is trading. We believe a micro view of sectors and stock
will remain important and investment selection should focus on companies which trade at a deep
discount to their intrinsic value. The market is currently trading at PER of 4.7x, while offering a
dividend yield of 9.5%.

For debt holders, we expect Money Market Funds to continue to seamlessly mirror policy rates
throughout the year. On the other hand, government bonds yields may continue to remain at
elevated levels given inflationary pressure. We remain cautious at the current levels of bond
yields and would continue to monitor the data points to capitalize on opportunities.

Corporate Governance

The Fund is committed to implement the highest standards of corporate governance. The Board
comprises of eight (8) members including the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and has a diverse
mix of gender and knowledge. The Board consists of 1 female and 7 male directors, categorized
as follows:

e 4 Non — Executive Directors;
e 3 Independent Directors; and
e 1 Executive Director (CEO).
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The details of above are as under:

Sr. Name Status Membership in other Board Committees
No.
1. Mr. Haroun Rashid Non-Executive Director None
2. Mr. Nasim Beg Non-Executive Director (i) Audit Committee; and
(i) HR&R* Committee
3. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Non-Executive Director (i) Audit Committee; and
(i) HR&R* Committee.
4. Mr. Kashif A. Habib Non-Executive Director (i) Audit Committee
5. Syed Savail Meekal Hussain Independent Director (i) Audit Committee
(i) HR&R* Committee
6. Mirza Qamar Beg Independent Director (i) Audit Committee (Chairman); and
(i) HR&R* Committee (Chairman).
7. Ms. Mavra Adil Khan Independent Director (i) HR&R* Committee
8. Mr. Muhammad Saqib Saleem Executive Director Q) HR&R* Committee
* HR&R stands for Human Resource and Remuneration.

Management is continuing to comply with the provisions of best practices set out in the code of
corporate governance. The Fund remains committed to conduct business in line with listing
regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange, which clearly defined the role and responsibilities of
Board of Directors and Management.

The Board of Directors is pleased to report that:

a. Financial statements present fairly its state of affairs, the results of operations, cash flows
and changes in equity.

b. Proper books of accounts of the Fund have been maintained.

c. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of
financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
judgment.

d. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, provisions of the
Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment & Regulations) Rules, 2003, Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008, requirements of the
respective Trust Deeds and directives issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission
of Pakistan have been followed in the preparation of financial statements.

e. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented
and monitored with ongoing efforts to improve it further.

f. There are no doubts what so ever upon the Fund’s ability to continue as going concern.
g. There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance.

h. Outstanding statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges, if any
have been fully disclosed in the financial statements.

i. The statement as to the value of investments of provident/gratuity and pension fund is not

applicable on the Fund but applies to the Management Company; hence no disclosure
has been made in the Directors’ Report.
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As at June 30, 2022, the Company is in compliance with the requirements of Directors’
Training Program, as contained in Regulation No. 19 of the Code.

The detailed pattern of unit holding, as required by NBFC Regulations are enclosed.

A formal and effective mechanism is put in place for an annual evaluation of the Board’s
own performance, members of the Board and Committees of the Board.

. The details of attendance of Board of Directors meeting is disclosed in financial
statements. Below are the details of committee meetings held during the year ended

June 30, 2022:

1. Meeting of the Audit Committee.

During the year, nine (9) meetings of the Audit Committee were held. The attendance of

each participant is as follows:

Number Number of meetings
of
Name of Persons meetings Attenc!ance Attended Leave
required granted
held
1. Mirza Qamar Beg(Chairman) 9 9 9 -
2. Mr. Nasim Beg 9 9 9 -
3. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 9 9 8 1
4. Mr. Kashif A. Habib 9 9 6 3
5. Syed Savail Meekal Hussain 9 9 9 -

2. Meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee.

During the year, five (5) meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee
were held. The attendance of each participant is as follows:

Number of meetings
Number
of Attendan
Name of Persons meeting ce Attended Leave

S required granted
1. Mirza Qamar Beg (chairman) 5 5 5 -
2. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 5 5 2 3
3. Mr. Nasim Beg 5 5 2 3
4. Ms. Mavra Adil Khan 5 5 5 -
5. Syed Savail Meekal Hussain 5 5 2 3
6 Mr. Muhammad Saqib Saleem 5 5 5 )

(CEO)

The trades in the Units of the Fund were carried out during the year by Directors, Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary,
and Chief Internal Auditor of the Management Company and their spouses and minor

children.
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Dividend
Investment Redemption | Distributio
S. No. Name Designation n
(Number of Units)
Muhammad Chief Executive
1 Saqib Saleem Officer 20,630.89 20,630.89 0
Chief Operating
2 Muhammad Asif Officer/ Chief 391.165 1849.8637 0
Mehdi Rizvi Financial Officer
3 Nasim Beg Director 203 1039 0
4 Mobin Ahmed | oot nternal Auditor | 10,325.04 5,335.59 0
Siddiqui

External Auditors

The fund’s external auditors, M/s Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants have expressed
their willingness to continue as the fund auditors for the ensuing year ending June 30, 2023. The
audit committee of the Board has recommended reappointment of M/s Ernst & Young Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants as auditors of the fund for the year ending June 30, 2023 and the Board
of Directors also endorsed the recommendation of the Audit Committee.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Board is thankful to the Fund’s valued investors, the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan and the Trustees of the Fund for their continued cooperation and support. The Directors
also appreciate the efforts put in by the management team.

On behalf of Directors,

Vb

Muhammad Saqib Saleem
Chief Executive Officer
August 15, 2022
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REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Fund Type and Category

Pakistan Stock Market Fund (PSM) is an Open-End Equity Scheme.
Fund Benchmark

The benchmark for PSM is KSE 100 Index.

Investment Objective

The objective of the fund is to provide investors long term capital appreciation from its investment in
Pakistani equities

Investment Strategy

Pakistan Stock Market Fund (PSM) is an open end equity fund that invests in quality stocks listed in
Pakistan. The fund is actively managed and fundamental research drives the investment process.
Fundamental outlook of sectors/companies and DCF (discounted cash flow) valuations are the
primary factors in sectors’ allocation and stock selection. Major portion of the fund’s portfolio is high
quality liquid stocks. The funds which are not invested in equities are required to be kept in bank
deposits and short-term money market instruments/ placements.

Manager’s Review

During the period, PSM generated a return of -16.53% as compared to a return of -12.28%
witnessed by the KSE100 Index. Overall equity exposure stood at 94.5% on June 30, 2022, with
major allocation in Cements, Commercial Banks and Oil sectors.

The Net Assets of the fund as at June 30, 2022 stood at Rs. 8,875 million as compared to Rs.
12,397 million as at June 30, 2021 registering a decrease of 28.4%. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per
unit as at June 30, 2022 was Rs. 86.5039 as compared to opening NAV of Rs. 103.6294 per unit as
at June 30, 2021 registering a decrease of 17.1255 per unit.

Asset Allocation as on June 30, 2022 (% of total assets)

Asset Allocation (%age of Total Assets) Jun-22
Stocks / Equities 94.5%
Cash 3.6%
T-Bills 0.0%
Others including receivables 1.9%
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REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Asset Allocation as on June 30, 2022 (% of total assets)

Cash & Other

Assets
5.5% Commercial Banks
Other Equities 24.5%
29.0%
Cement
17.3%
Fertilizer =
5.6% Oil & Gas
Textile Composite Exploration
7.1% Companies
11.0%

Awais Abdul Sattar, CFA
Fund Manager
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
MCBE PAKISTAN STOCK MARKET FUND

Report of the Trastee pursaant to Regulation 41(h} and clawse 9 of Schedule V of
the Mon-Banking Finamce Companies and Motified Entities Regulations, 2008

We Central Deposuory Company of Pakeisn Limited, bemg the Trusiee of MCB
Pukistan Stock Morket Fund (the Fund) are of the opinion thet MCH-Amf Habih
Savings amd Investments Limaad beng the Management Company of the Fand has in
ofl malerial respects managed the Fund during the wear ended June 30, 2022 m
aceordance with the provisions of the follewing:

(i} Limiations imposed on the investment powers of (he Management Company
under the condifuine documents of the Fumd;

fudd The pricang, ssuance and redempiion of wnsts are carmed oul 1 accondance with
the requiremenis of the constitutive documents of the Fund; and

(i}  The Non-Banking Finance Companses (Estabfishment and Regulations) Rules,

20013, the Mon-Banking Finanoe Companies and Nobified Erdstses Repualatons
2008 and the constitufive documents of the Fund.

A A
B B .ﬁ.l:hurf[
Chief Executive Oificer
Central Depossiory Company of Pakistan Limited

Kamchi; September 19, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To the Unit holders of MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund
Repaort on the Awdit af the Financlal Statements

Opintan

Wo havve audiled the financlal statements of MCB Pakistan Steck Mariet Fand (Ehe Funady, which
comprise 1he statement of assets and liabilities &4 af 30 June 2022, and the income statement,
compranensive incame, cash fiows stalement and movement in il hoiders’ fund for ihe vEar then
erded, and notes to the financial statements, Including a summary of significant accounting palicies.

In our opindan, the sccompanying fnancial statermends present Tairty, in o materlal respects, far give a
brue and 1air view of) ihe Bnancial pesition of the Fund a4 at 30 June 2022, and of #: Branclal
performance and |ts cash fows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standasds a5 applicable i Pakithen,

Bmsis for Opinbon

W conductod cur audit in accardance with inbernational Standards on Auditing (FEAS) as applicabie in
Pakistan. Our responsibdies wnder those standards are furiher described in Ehe Auditors
Respansibilities har the Audit of the Financial Statements sectan of our report. We are independent al
trie Fursd in accordance with ihe International Ethics Standards Board far Accourtants’ Cooe of Eifkes
lor Professional Accountants a5 sdopled by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ife
Codle) and we have Fullilied cur olfer athical resoonsibilities In accordance wilh Ehe Code, Wa beligye
Ihal the sudit avidance we have cblained s sufficient and appropriate to provide & Basis for pur
Spinion.

ey Aindit Matters

Hey audil matters arg thope maliers that, in our professional judgment, were of most slgnilicance in
ourr audit af e financlal statemenis of the cument perind. Thess mabtors were gadreised in tha
eontext of our awdit of the Hnancial statements as a whoie, and in forming our coinion therean, and we
do nod provide a separate opirdon an Ehese maiters,

Faliawineg are the key sudit matters:

| Howouraum :

. 1. Existence and valuation of bank balances and investments -
AS Siscinsed in note § and & to tha W performed & combenation of audl procedunes
Aicomparying inancial statements ot the | Toousing on the existonce and valuation of bank

Fund fer {he year ended 30 June 2022, ine | Dalances and Investments. Our key procedures
bank balances and rvestmonts (comprised | Mouded the following:

| & exguily in i the Fun
re-::::.m*ll E:Lh-:ﬁh::tl:tzalrazvmg n{‘:n: Wi ablained Independent confirmations for
Fund as &l ik year gnd verifying the existence of the bank balances as
TR at 30 June 2022 and reconciled it with thy
| bocks ard records of the Fued,

| = e lested controls ever acquisition, disposals
and periadic valuation of Investments partfalio.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

il & rihe
= 2
| Bn vierer of the significance of Bank Batsnoes. = Wa parion pubstantive Badd plocedures an
| &nd investment in nedalban fo the tokal e -and badance o parifola including review of
assets and the Nel Asseds Yalus (NAY) of custooian's statement and related
| the Fund, we have considered the existence recoaciiations and valuations on such

investiments in acoardance with 1he accourting

| @l valuatlon of such bank bels ol
| L il paley af 1he Fund as mentionsd in note 4.

Imvestments as @ hey aud® matter.

= We cvaluated the appropriatensss af the
ciagsification of §he investments in accordance
wilh tho reguirements of IFRS 9 and Lhe
valuaticons i acoordance wilh the regulrements
of Mon-Banking Finance Comparmies and Malifjag
Entifties Reguiations, 2008 (the Regulaticns).

115 Wi assessed the Fund's compllance with the
requirements of the Regulations in relatisn ba
ihe concentration of investmens and exposure
imits prescribed in such Regulaticns snd the
applicabifity of gsclosures In this regard.

- We alsp evaluated (ke sdeguacy of Ehe ovarail |
dhclosures In the financial statements In respect
af the inwestment porifoio in scoardanos with
thae requiremants of the Requlatians and

| applicable financis! reporting standards.

Gther information

Management is responsibie for ihe other information, The ather information comarises the information
Imchuded In the Annual Report, but does not include the finsnclal statements and our suditors’ report
therean,

Our opiréon on Tha financial statemants Goes not caver [he ciker Infermation and we do nod SELESS
ary Torm of assuwrance conclusion thareon,

Ir cannectian with ouwr sudl of the financial statemonts, our responsibility s (o read the athar
imlgrenation and, in 3aing 35, corsider whether the other information Is materiaily Inconsistend wilh the
financlal sistements or our knowiedge oblained in the awdit or oiberwise appears to be materially
ieegilafed. If, based on the work we have porformed, we conclude that there Is 3 materls]
misslatement of this other infarmation, wa are required o report thad fact, 'We hawe nothing bo regart
in khis regard.

Responsibliities of Management and Board of Directers Tor the Financial Statements

Management is responsible tor the preparation and falr presentation af ihe finarcial statements In
acrordance wih accounting ard reporting standards as applicable in Pasistan, and lar such internad
cantrod as Managemanit determines i5 recessary to enable (he preparation of fManclal statements that
are free from materlal misstatement, whather due to Iraud e efrer,

in preparing the financial stalements, Managemsnl ls resporaible for astessing the Fund's ability ba
Lonlinue a5 4 going concern, dsclosing, a1 applicabtie, matters refated to goéng contern amd using the
going concenn Basis of eounting urkess H!:ﬂdl;l'\n'llﬂl either inlends bo liguidate the Fund or Lo cease
aperations, or has no realistic altermate it o do 5o,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

EY

Buddirg = brit

wuiieng Al

i [

The Board of Directors are responsibie for oversesing 1he Fund's fnancial reparting process
Auditer's Responsibilities fer the Audlt of the Fimanclal Statements

Our objectives are lo abtaln reasonable assurance about whether the Financial statements a5 a whole
are free from material méssbabement, whether due to fraud or error, and bo issise an suditor's report
that includes our opinicn, Reasonabés Msurande i a high leved of assurance, bul is not a guarantes
thal an aiedit conducted in accordance with FSAs as spplicable in Pakistan will always detect & material
misstatemerd whan | exists, Misstalements can aflss from fraud or error and ane considered material
If, mdividually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infuence the ecanomic
decisions of users {aken on the basls of these lirencial slatements,

A% part of an sudit in accordance with 1545 as appficable n Paklitan, we suprcise professianal
adgmeni and maintoin professional skepticism throughout the audil. We also:

= Eoentily and assess the rasks of material méisstatemsnt of the fnancisl statemants, whather due
i frawd or evror, design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o these risks, and obitain
audil ewidence thal i suffichent and apgropriate Lo provide a Basis for cur opinlon. The risk af
reat deteciing a material misstatemant resulting From Traud & higher Shan for one resulting
frivm enror, as Iraud may invoive coliusion, forgery, intentionsl omissions, misrepresandations.
o {he overrides af infernal controd,

= Dbdain an urderstanding of inlernal controd relevant 1o the audit in crder to design auc
procedures that are sppropriate in the drcumstances, but not for the purpase of oXpressng an
opirecen on the effectvengss al {ke Furd's inbernal combrol,

= Evaluate ihe approprialeness of accounling palickes used and the reasenshieness of
accoLmbing eshimales and relatled disclosures made Oy manhajement.

- Condade on the aporopriateness of management's use of the galng concern basls of
accoumting and, based on the audd evidence chitained, whether a metesial uncortainty exists
refated o evants or conditions thal may cast significant doubl an the Fund's abdity 1o continye
23 4 geing cancerm, | we conclude that 8 material uncertainty exisis, we are required 1o draw
attention in our aUtEoe's Fepor] [o (he relsted dsciosures in tha financial slatemerds or, if
such disclosures are inadequale. bo madily our apinton. Our conclusions are Baisd an (he sudd
evidence obiained up to the cate of aur auditors repart. Mowever, future avents or conditions
iy cause Ehe Fumd bo cease o conlipmie as a gaing conoern.

= Evaluste ihe overall presentation, structure and content of the financlal statements, ncluding
the dizcliosures. and whether jhe limancis stalements represent the wnderiying transacbons
and @vents Ima manner ihal achleves lair presantation.

‘We communicate with the Boand of Oirectors regarding, among ather matters, the planned wcops and
timirg of the audd and significans audit findings, Inchuding any signéficant deficiencies in islernal
conrtrol that we Identily during owr .

Wi alio provide the Board of Directors with 2 statement that we have complied with ressvant sthical
respuitemenis reganding independence, and to comminicate with them all relationships and of b
maatters thal may ressonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where appilcable. related
saleguards,

i |
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oot

From the matiers commusnicated with the Beard of Direclors, we determing [hose mstters that wore of
mgh sgnificanie B the audit of the financial stalemants af the current perfod and are Ehecelare Fhe
key AUl matiers, We seacribe theses mathers in our audor's report unless law of requiadion preciudes
pubdfic dischosure aboul the matber or when, in extrémely rare crcumstances, we determine that 3
matter showd fot be communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of doing 5o
wiruld reasanably be expacted to outwelgh the publis interest berelits of such comenumicalian.

Repart on Other Legal and Regulalery Regqulrements

In owr opinion, the financisl statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant proisiors
al ke Mon-Banking Finance Companles (Establishment and Regulaltion) Rules, 2003 and the None
Saraing Finance Compardes and Matifled Entities Regulation, 2008,

The engagemsent partner on the awdit resuting in this independent auditor's report is Shalkh Ahmed
Salman

s A—

Chariered A¢countants
Date; 16 Seplember 2022
Karach

UDIM Humber: ARZ022 100 TEkDMmITRRZY
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STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS

Balances with banks

Investments

Receivable against sale of investments
Dividend and markup receivables
Advances, deposits and other receivables
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Payable to the Management Company

Payable to the Trustee

Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Payable against purchase of investments

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Payable against redemption of units

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

UNIT HOLDERS’ FUND (AS PER STATEMENT ATTACHED)

Contingencies and Commitments

NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE

NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT

The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

10
11

12

13

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
--------- (Rupees in '000) ----------

329,797 265,332
8,600,491 11,903,844
148,458 499,859
5,318 16,830
18,409 74,522
9,102,473 12,760,387
48,463 63,617
920 1,258
2,231 2,286
100,314 24,138
74,827 202,766
386 69,140
227,141 363,204
8,875,332 12,397,182
8,875,332 12,397,182

102,600,400

119,629,978

86.5039

103.6294

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(the Management Company)

ek I

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

F=
/

Director
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INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

INCOME
Financial income on:
- Government securities
- Bank balances
Dividend income
(Loss) / gain on sale of investments - net
Unrealised (loss) / gain on re-measurement of investments
classified as at fair value through profit or loss - net
Other income
Total Income

EXPENSES

Remuneration of the Management Company

Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company
Remuneration of the Trustee

Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee

Annual fee of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Allocated expenses

Selling and marketing expenses

Auditors' remuneration

Securities transaction cost

Settlement and bank charges

Legal and professional charges

Fees and subscriptions

Other charges

Total expenses

Net (loss) / income for the year from operations
Reversal / (Provision) for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF)

Net (loss) / income for the year before taxation

Taxation
Net (loss) / income for the year after taxation

Allocation of net income / (loss) for the year
Net (loss) / income for the year after taxation
(Loss) / income already paid on units redeemed

Accounting (loss) / income available for distribution
- relating to capital gains
- excluding capital gains

6.1

9.1
9.2
10.1
10.2
11
9.3
9.4
14

12.1

15

The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

June 30,

2022

June 30,
2021

(Rupees in '000) ---------

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited

(the Management Company)

ek I

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

279 1,380
34,500 15,098
676,789 506,932
(789,772) 2,415,645
(1,383,402) 722,943
156 132
(1,461,450) 3,662,130
220,935 228,599
28,722 29,718
12,155 12,430
1,580 1,616
2,231 2,286
11,154 11,430
145,009 148,589
1,120 920
48,973 84,793
4,079 5,037

52 137

28 40

39 42
476,077 525,637
(1,937,527) 3,136,493
120,605 (62,730)
(1,816,922) 3,073,763
(1,816,922) 3,073,763
- 3,073,763
- (751,278)

- 2,322,485

- 2,322,485

- 2,322,485

.

Director
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STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------

Net (loss) / income for the year after taxation (1,816,922) 3,073,763

Other comprehensive
income for the year - -

Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (1,816,922) 3,073,763

The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(the Management Company)

-

Vg s =

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

June 30, 2022

June 30, 2021

Undistributed Undistributed
Capital income / Capital income /
value (loss) Total value (loss) Total
(Rupees in '000)
Net assets at the beginning of the year 7,165,600 5,231,582 12,397,182 5,894,800 2,909,097 8,803,897
Issuance of 49,113,002 (2021: 120,986,407) units:
- Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the
beginning of the year) at Rs. 103.6294 5,089,551 - 5,089,551 9,367,130 - 9,367,130
- Element of (loss) / income (231,312) - (231,312) 2,301,699 - 2,301,699
4,858,239 - 4,858,239 11,668,829 - 11,668,829
Redemption of 66,142,580 (2021: 115,068,007) units:
- Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the
beginning of the year) at Rs. 103.6294 6,854,316 - 6,854,316 8,908,910 - 8,908,910
- Element of (loss) / income (291,149) - (291,149) 1,489,119 751,278 2,240,397
6,563,167 - 6,563,167 10,398,029 751,278 11,149,307
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year - (1,816,922) [ (1,816,922) - 3,073,763 3,073,763
Distributions during the year - - - - - -
Net (loss) / profit for the year less distribution - (1,816,922) (1,816,922) - 3,073,763 3,073,763
Net assets as at the end of the year 5,460,672 3,414,660 8,875,332 7,165,600 5,231,582 12,397,182
Undistributed income / (loss)
brought forward comprising of:
- Realised 4,508,639 3,417,678
- Unrealised 722,943 (508,581)
5,231,582 2,909,097
Accounting income available for distribution:
- Relating to capital gains - 2,322,485
- Excluding capital gains - -
. 2,322,485
Net (loss) / income for the year after taxation (1,816,922) -
Distribution during the year - -
Undistributed income carried forward 3,414,660 5,231,582
Undistributed income / (loss) carried forward:
- Realised 4,798,062 4,508,639
- Unrealised (1,383,402) 722,943
3,414,660 5,231,582
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Net assets value per unit at beginning of the year 103.6294 77.4230
Net assets value per unit at end of the year 86.5039 103.6294

The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(the Management Company)

Yorb l a;

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
Note  ------- (Rupees in '000) -------
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net (loss) / income for the year before taxation (1,816,922) 3,073,763
Adjustments for non cash and other items:
Financial income (34,779) (16,478)
Dividend income (676,789) (506,932)
Unrealised loss / (gain) on re-measurement of investments
classified as at fair value through profit or loss - net 1,383,402 (722,943)
Loss / (gain) on sale of investments - net 789,772 (2,415,645)
(Reversal) / Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) (120,605) 62,730
(475,921) (525,505)
Decrease / (increase) in assets
Investments - net 1,206,355 (165,704)
Receivable against sale of investments 351,401 (472,774)
Advances, deposits and receivables 56,114 (60,250)
1,613,870 (698,728)
(Decrease) / increase in liabilities
Payable to the Management Company (15,154) 18,569
Payable to the Trustee (338) 370
Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (55) 516
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (7,334) 4,742
Payable against redemption of units (68,754) 68,754
(91,635) 92,951
Dividend received 690,983 508,222
Financial income received 32,096 17,004
Net cash generated / (used in) from operating activities 1,769,393 (606,056)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Amount received on issuance of units 4,858,239 11,668,829
Amount paid on redemption of units (6,563,167) (11,149,307)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (1,704,928) 519,522
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents during the year 64,465 (86,534)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 265,332 351,866
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 329,797 265,332
The annexed notes 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(the Management Company)
ha—a

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Director
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

1.

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1 MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund (the Fund) was established under a Trust Deed executed between Arif
Habib Investments Limited (now MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited) as "Management
Company" and Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as Trustee. The Trust Deed was
executed on October 23, 2001 and was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) on February 28, 2002 in accordance with the Asset Management Companies Rules, 1995 (AMC
Rules) repealed by Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC
Rules). The Trust Act, 1882 has been repealed due to the promulgation of Provincial Trust Act namely
“Sindh Trusts Act, 2020” (the Sindh Trust Act) as empowered under the Eighteenth Amendment to the
Constitution of Pakistan. The Fund is required to be registered under the Sindh Trust Act. Accordingly, on
August 12, 2021 the above-mentioned Trust Deed has been registered under the Sindh Trust Act.

1.2 The Management Company of the Fund has been licensed to act as an Asset Management Company
under the Non Baking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules 2003 through a
certificate of registration issued by the SECP. The registered office of the Management Company is located
at 2nd Floor, Adamjee House, I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi, Pakistan.

1.3 The Fund has been categorised as equity scheme and offers units for public subscription on a continuous
basis. The units of the Fund are transferable and can also be redeemed by surrendering them to the Fund.
The units are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Fund primarily invests in listed equity securities.
However, it also invests in cash instruments and treasury bills not exceeding 90 days in maturities.

1.4 The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) Limited has assigned Management quality rating of 'AM1’
dated October 06, 2021 to the Management Company.

1.5 Title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
(CDC) as the Trustee of the Fund. The duration of the Fund is perpetual. However, SECP or the
Management Company may wind it up on the occurrence of certain events as specified in the offering
document of the Fund.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Such standards comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act);

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984; and

- The NBFC rules, the Non-Banking Finance Companies, Notified Entities Regulations, 2008
(the NBFC Regulations) and the requirements of Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the
IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust
Deed have been followed.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
3.1 Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for investments
which are measured at fair value.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

3.2

3.3

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of
making judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee which is the Fund's functional and
presentation currency.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those of the
previous financial years.

4.1

4.2

4.3

New / Revised Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

There are certain new and amended standards, issued by International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB), interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Fund's accounting periods beginning on
or after July 01, 2021 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the
Fund's operations and therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the
respective standard or interpretation:

Effective date (annual periods
Standard or Interpretation beginning on or after)

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use —

- Amendments to IAS 16 January 01, 2022
Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to IAS 37 January 01, 2022
IFRS 3 - Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments) January 01, 2022
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Fees in the ’10 per cent’

test for derecognition of financial liabilities January 01, 2022
Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to IAS 8 January 01, 2023
Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS

Practice Statement 2 January 01, 2023
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction — Amendments to IAS 12 January 01, 2023
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current - Amendment to IAS 1 January 01, 2024

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture - Amendment to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Not yet finalized

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for
the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

IFRS 1 - First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards July 01, 2009
IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts January 01, 2023
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of bank balances and short term highly liquid investments with original
maturity of three months or less, are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments
rather than for investments and other purposes.
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4.4

441

Investments

Classification
Business model assessment

The Fund determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial
assets to achieve its business objective.

The Fund's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of
aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

- The objectives for the portfolio, in particular, whether management's strategy focuses on earning
contractual revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realizing cash flows through the
sale of the assets;

- How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model
are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel;

- The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed; and

- How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on
the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected).

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or
'stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is
different from the Fund's original expectations, the Fund does not change the classification of the remaining
financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing newly
originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

Assessments whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)

As a second step of its classification process the Fund assesses the contractual terms of financial to
identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition
and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or
amortisation of the premium / discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for
the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Fund applies judgement and
considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period
for which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the
contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the
financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument held for trading purposes is classified as measured at FVTPL.
Initial Measurement

Investments are initially measured at their fair value except in the case of financial assets recorded at
FVTPL, transaction costs are added to, or subtracted from, this amount.
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4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

Subsequent Measurement
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL are recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair
value are recorded in profit and loss. Dividend income from equity instruments measured at FVTPL is
recorded in profit or loss when the right to the payment has been established.

Impairment of financial assets

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before credit losses are recognized.

However, SECP through its SCD/AMCW/RS/MUFAP/2017-148 dated November 21, 2017 have deferred
the applicability of above impairment requirements in relation to debt securities for mutual funds and
accordingly, basis defined in Circular No. 33 of 2012 dated, October 24, 2012 will be followed.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. These are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at
amortised cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets
and liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive, obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions, if any, are
regularly reviewed and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Taxation

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than ninety percent of its accounting
income for the year, as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed to the unit
holders as cash dividend.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of
the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Dividend distribution and appropriations

Dividend distributions and appropriations are recorded in the period in which these are approved by the
Board of Directors of the Management Company. Based on Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan's
(MUFAP) guidelines duly consented by the SECP, distribution for the year also includes portion of income
already paid on units redeemed during the year.

Regulation 63 of the NBFC Regulations requires the Fund to distribute 90% of the net accounting income
other than capital gains to the unit holders.

Distributions declared subsequent to the year end reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events
and are recognised in the financial statements of the period in which such distributions are declared and
approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company.
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4.1

4.12

413

4.15

Issue and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications
received by the distributors during business hours on that date. The offer price represents the net asset
value per unit as of the close of the business day plus the allowable sales load and any provision for duties
and charges, if applicable. The sales load is payable to investment facilitators, distributors and the
Management Company.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units for which the distributors receive
redemption applications during business hours of that day. The redemption price represents the net asset
value per unit as of the close of the business day less any back-end load, any duties, taxes, and charges
on redemption, if applicable.

Net asset value per unit

The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit, as disclosed in the statement of assets and liabilities, is calculated by
dividing the net assets of the Fund by the number of units in circulation at the year end.

Revenue recognition
- Gain or loss on sale of investment is accounted for in the income statement in the period in which it arises.

- Unrealised gain / (loss) arising on revaluation of investments classified as 'at fair value through profit or
loss' is included in the income statement in the period in which it arises.

- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

- Profit / mark-up on bank balances and government securities is recognised on an effective interest rate
method.

Expenses

All expenses chargeable to the Fund including remuneration of the Management Company, Trustee fee
and annual fee of the SECP are recognised in the Income Statement on an accrual basis.

Earnings / (loss) per unit

Earnings / (Loss) per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as in the opinion of the management,
determination of weighted average units for calculating EPU is not practicable.

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
Note @~ -—--- (Rupees in '000) ------

BALANCES WITH BANKS

In current accounts 5.1 24,794 21,217

In savings accounts 5.2 305,003 244,115

329,797 265,332

5.1 These include a balance of Rs.15.348 (2021: Rs.11.768) million maintained with MCB Bank Limited, a
related party.

5.2 These carry profits at the rates ranging from 5.50% to 17.05% (2021: 5.50% to 7.83%) per annum and
include Rs.231.477 (2021:Rs.207.336) million maintained with MCB Bank Limited, a related party which
carries profit at the rate of 5.50% (2021: 5.50% to 8.83%) per annum.

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
Note ~ -—---- (Rupees in '000) ------
INVESTMENTS
At fair value through profit or loss
Listed equity securities 6.1 8,600,490 11,903,844
Government securities 6.2 - -
8,600,491 11,903,844

341 MCB PAKISTAN STOCK MARKET FUND




REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

6 Listed equity securities - at fair value through profit or loss

6.1

No. of shares as at JUNE 30, 2022
Bonus / Market Market value | % of paid-up
Purchased | right issue value as at as a % of net | capital of the
As at July | during the | during the | Sold during| As at June Carrying June 30, Unrealised | assets of the investee
Name of the i Symbol | 01, 2021 year year the year 30, 2022 Value 2022 gain / (loss)
Rupees in '00
Shares of listed companies - fully paid ordinary shares of Rs.10 each unless stated otherwise
Automobile Assembler
Ghandhara Nissan Limited GHNL - 226,600 - 226,600 - - - - - -
Honda Atlas Cars(Pakistan) Limited HCAR 486,300 120,000 - 561,200 55,100 15,913 10,730 (5,183) 0.12% 0.04%
Indus Motors Company Limited INDU 179,790 - - 179,790 - - - - - -
Millat Tractors Limited MTL 90,000 - - 90,000 - - - - - -
Pak Suzuki Motors Company Limited PSMC 265,000 647,333 - 886,960 25,373 7,000 5,359 (1.641) 0.06% 0.03%
80,473 22,913 16,089 (6,824) 0.18% 0.07%
Parts & ie:
Agriauto Industires Limited* AGIL - 154,600 - - 154,600 26,065 20,716 (5,349) 0.23% 0.54%
Atlas Battery Limited ATBA - 25,500 - 12,500 13,000 2,186 2,235 49 0.03% 0.05%
Ghandhara Tyre & Rubber Company Limited GTYR - 1,160,000 - 30,500 1,129,500 58,551 38,414 (20,137) 0.43% 0.93%
Panther Tyres Limited PTL 2,065,504 504,500 230,000 2,800,004 - - - - - -
Thal Limited* THALL 633,300 12,900 - 275,800 370,400 154,651 99,867 (54,784) 1.13% 0.46%
1,667,500 241,453 161,232 (80,220) 1.82% 1.98%
Cable & Electrical Goods
Pak Elektron Limited PAEL - 7,304,500 4,817,500 6,122,000 6,000,000 94,534 95,340 806 1.07% 1.21%
6,000,000 94,534 95,340 806 1.07% 1.21%
Cement
Bestway Cement Limited BWCL - 900,700 - 279,200 621,500 92,473 78,918 (13,555) 0.89% 0.10%
Cherat Cement Company Limited CHCC 48,000 3,483,425 - 2,496,238 1,035,187 152,602 96,314 (56,288) 1.09% 2.44%
D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited DGKC 1,851,480 6,814,318 - 4,617,520 4,048,278 326,094 253,017 (73,077) 2.85% 0.92%
Fauji Cement Company Limited FCCL - 38,625,000 - 4,274,000 34,351,000 622,193 486,754 (135,439) 5.48% 2.49%
Gharibwal Cement Ltd GwLC - 104,000 - - 104,000 2,652 2,028 (624) 0.02% 0.03%
Kohat Cement Company Limited KOHC 1,583,670 284,700 - 1,047,500 820,870 157,820 106,820 (51,000) 1.20% 0.41%
Lucky Cement Limited LUCK 946,003 598,500 - 749,111 795,392 578,022 365,117 (212,905) 4.11% 0.25%
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited MLCF 9,075,771 14,869,156 - 17,096,381 6,848,546 243,839 187,308 (56,531) 2.11% 0.62%
Pioneer Cement Limited PIOC 2,502,000 2,865,400 - 5,367,400 - - - - - -
Power Cement Limited POWER 7,193,000 - - 7,193,000 - - - - - -
48,624,773 2,175,695 1,576,275 (599,419) 17.75% 7.26%
Chemicals
Archroma Pakistan Limited ARPL 113,850 101,200 - 182,800 32,250 18,265 17,705 (560) 0.20% 0.09%
Dynea Pakistan Limited DYNO - 58,500 - 33,800 24,700 4,054 4,297 243 0.05% 0.13%
Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited EPCL 4,999,655 1,569,500 - 6,569,155 - - - - - -
ICI Pakistan Limited ICI - 92,150 - 92,150 - - - - - -
Lotte Chemical Pakistan Limited LOTCHEM 8,650,000 1,276,500 - 9,926,500 - - - - - -
Nimir Resins Limited NRSL - 885,000 - 25,000 860,000 12,766 12,496 (270) 0.14% 1.08%
Sitara Chemical Industries sITC - 54,000 - 54,000 - - - - - -
916,950 35,085 34,498 (587) 0.39% 1.30%
Commercial Banks
Allied Bank Limited ABL 62,100 500,000 - 562,100 - - - - - -
Bank Al Habib Limited BAHL 4,268,538 1,220,586 - 5,336,033 153,091 9,537 8,888 (649) 0.10% 0.01%
Bank AlFalah Limited BAFL 6,586,952 7,583,029 - 6,942,789 7,227,192 238,488 231,270 (7,218) 2.61% 0.41%
Bank Of Punjab BOP - 820,000 - 820,000 - - - - - -
Bankislami Pakistan Limited BIPL - 7,495,000 - 1,650,000 5,845,000 72,224 70,374 (1,850) 0.79% 0.53%
Faysal Bank Limited FABL - 10,003,500 - 1,449,500 8,554,000 188,880 197,255 8,375 2.22% 0.56%
Habib Bank Limited HBL 4,148,266 3,616,276 - 2,705,281 5,059,261 606,336 462,113 (144,223) 5.21% 0.34%
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited HMB 1,842,500 4,849,500 - 3,528,500 3,163,500 131,278 123,535 (7,743) 1.39% 0.30%
MCB Bank Limited MCB - 1,325,259 - 1,282,759 42,500 5,155 5,227 72 0.06% 0.00%
Meezan Bank Limited MEBL 2,959,978 4,171,015 414,214 1,326,664 6,218,543 722,263 702,571 (19,692) 7.92% 0.38%
Samba Bank Limited SBL 5,215,500 - - 5,215,500 - - - - - -
United Bank Limited uBL 5,044,022 3,365,296 - 4,635,830 3,773,488 478,457 426,895 (51,562) 4.81% 0.31%
40,036,575 2,452,619 2,228,128 (224,490) 25.11% 2.84%
Engineering
Agha Steel Industries Limited AGHA - 4,610,500 64,350 3,737,850 937,000 13,746 14,692 946 0.17% 0.15%
Aisha Steel Mills Limited ASL 4,389,000 9,588,030 - 9,290,000 4,687,030 66,687 51,792 (14,895) 0.58% 0.51%
Amreli Steels Limited ASTL - 5,250,000 - 1,297,500 3,952,500 154,301 92,647 (61,655) 1.04% 1.33%
International Industries Limited INIL 612,700 604,077 - 716,777 500,000 74,510 51,865 (22,645) 0.58% 0.38%
International Steels Limited ISL - 1,215,485 - 886,649 328,836 20,183 19,520 (663) 0.22% 0.08%
Mughal Iron & Steel Industries Limited MUGHAL - 2,522,052 82,500 1,492,297 1,112,255 68,609 64,110 (4,499) 0.72% 0.33%
11,517,621 398,036 294,626 (103,411) 3.31% 2.78%
Fertilizer
Engro Corporation Limited ENGRO 982,598 582,811 - 1,121,409 444,000 131,026 114,148 (16,878) 1.29% 0.08%
Engro Fertilizer Limited EFERT - 4,562,500 - 1,895,652 2,666,848 222,007 236,389 14,382 2.66% 0.20%
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited FFBL 6,848,000 9,435,000 - 8,480,500 7,802,500 184,329 157,923 (26,406) 1.78% 0.60%
Fauiji Fertilizer Company Limited FFC - 100,000 - 100,000 - - - - - -
10,913,348 537,362 508,460 (28,902) 5.73% 0.88%
Food & Personal Care Products
Al Shaheer Corporation ASC 5,223,000 1,627,000 - 6,850,000 - - - - - -
AT-Tahur Limtied PREMA - 1,490,000 - - 1,490,000 32,960 28,414 (4,546) 0.32% 0.84%
Fauji Foods Limited FFL 3,055,500 - - 3,055,500 - - - - - -
Murree Brewery Company MUREB 202,000 - - 14,550 187,450 109,058 75,915 (33,143) 0.86% 0.68%
Nestle Pakistan Limited NESTLE 3,033 820 - 3,020 833 4,750 4,831 81 0.05% 0.00%
The Organic Meat Company Limited TOMCL 3,488,000 1,740,500 189,500 2,818,000 2,600,000 80,808 56,784 (24,024) 0.64% 2.11%
Unity Foods Limited UNITY - 760,000 - 760,000 - - - - - -
4,278,283 227,576 165,944 (61,632) 1.87% 3.63%
Glass & Ceramics
Shabbir Tiles & Ceramics Limited* STCL 542,500 1,716,000 - 341,000 1,917,500 38,296 28,053 (10,243) 0.32% 0.59%
Tariq Glass Industries TGL - 1,267,500 - 567,500 700,000 74,772 72,667 (2,105) 0.82% 0.51%
2,617,500 113,068 100,720 (12,348) 1.14% 1.10%
Insurance
Adamjee Insurance Comapny Limited AICL 1,034,500 65,000 - 1,099,500 - - - - - -
Adamijee Life Insurance Company Limited ALIFE - 2,277,604 - 1,902,500 375,104 10,497 8,556 (1,941) 0.10% 0.15%
Jubilee Life Insurance Company Limited JLicL - 223,100 - 52,300 170,800 42,914 25,825 (17,089) 0.29% 0.20%
545,904 53,411 34,381 (19,030) 0.39% 0.35%
Inv.Banks/Inv.Com./S ecurities Cos.
Arif Habib Limited AHL 68,000 - - 68,000 - - - - - -
Leather & Tanneries
Bata Pakistan Limited BATA 4,040 35,160 - 13,000 26,200 45,107 62,354 17,247 0.70% 0.35%
Service Global Footwear Limited SGF 36 60,500 - 60,536 - - - - - -
Service Industries SRVI 403 55,200 - 55,603 - - - - - -
26,200 45,107 62,354 17,247 0.70% 0.35%
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6.1 No. of shares as at JUNE 30, 2022
Bonus / Market Market value | % of paid-up

Purchased | right issue value as at as a % of net | capital of the

As at July | during the | during the | Sold during| As at June Carrying June 30, Unrealised | assets of the investee
Name of the i Symbol 01, 2021 year year the year 30, 2022 Value 2022 gain / (loss)

Rupees in '00!

Miscellaneous

Pakistan Aluminium Beverage Cans Limited PABC - 1,150,500 - 1,150,500 - - - - - -
Shifa International Hospitals SHFA 329,600 1,063,700 20,860 1,200 1,412,960 282,649 253,118 (29,531) 2.85% 2.24%
Synthetic Products Limited SPEL - 2,908,500 58,000 1,608,500 1,358,000 21,967 19,134 (2,833) 0.22% 0.68%
Tri-Pak Films TRIPF 781,000 - - 781,000 - - - - - -
2,770,960 304,616 272,252 (32,364) 3.07% 2.92%
OIL & GAS EXPLORATION COMPANIES
Mari Petroleum Company Limited MARI 388,960 168,580 - 182,407 375,133 591,538 652,634 61,096 7.35% 0.28%
Oil & Gas Development Company Limited OGDC 5,139,277 622,531 - 3,876,511 1,885,297 174,650 148,316 (26,334) 1.67% 0.04%
Pakistan Oilfields Limited POL 652,561 125,200 - 533,562 244,199 96,157 99,098 2,941 1.12% 0.09%
Pakistan Petroleum Limited PPL 3,734,120 1,099,350 - 3,276,420 1,557,050 130,217 105,116 (25,101) 1.18% 0.06%
4,061,679 992,562 1,005,164 12,602 11.32% 0.47%
0Oil And Gas Marketing Companies
Attock Petroleum Limited APL 620,700 - - 570,700 50,000 16,052 16,066 14 0.18% 0.05%
Hi-Tech Lubricants Limited HTL - 1,732,000 59,000 844,000 947,000 39,976 37,549 (2,427) 0.42% 0.68%
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited PSO 1,586,305 50,000 - 1,636,305 - - - - - -
Shell (Pakistan) Limited SHEL 701,500 237,800 - 939,300 - - - - - -
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited SNGP 1,150,244 1,570,897 - 2,721,141 - - - - - -
997,000 56,028 53,615 (2,413) 0.60% 0.73%
Paper And Board
Century Paper & Board Mills Limited CEPB - 739,000 - 25,500 713,500 50,163 44,094 (6,069) 0.50% 0.00%
Cherat Packaging Limited CPPL - 217,600 - 173,000 44,600 4211 5,036 825 0.06% 0.10%
Packages Limited PKGS 581,400 189,150 - 193,850 576,700 299,701 230,023 (69,678) 2.59% 0.65%
Security Papers Limited SEPL - 593,700 - 2,500 591,200 75,000 68,556 (6,444) 0.77% 1.00%
1,926,000 429,075 347,709 (81,366) 3.92% 1.75%
Pharmaceuticals
Abbott Laboratories (Pakistan) Limited ABOT 376,450 - - 376,450 - - - - - -
Agp Limited AGP - 858,082 - 128,900 729,182 60,616 63,890 3,274 0.72% 0.00%
Citi Pharma limited CPHL - 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000 157,874 146,880 (10,994) 1.65% 0.00%
Ferozsons Laboratories Limited FEROZ - 30,000 - - 30,000 7,927 8,067 140 0.09% 0.08%
Glaxosmithkline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited GSKCH - 374,600 - 33,700 340,900 83,674 81,247 (2,427) 0.92% 0.29%
Glaxosmithkline Pakistan GLAXO - 307,400 - 307,400 - - - - - -
Highnoon Laboratories Limited HINOON 135,200 8,535 - 123,750 19,985 10,901 10,589 (312) 0.12% 0.05%
The Searle Company Limited SEARL 458,000 1,700,372 - 1,689,055 469,317 48,711 51,165 2,454 0.58% 0.15%
6,089,384 369,703 361,838 (7,865) 4.08% 0.57%
Power Generation & Distribution
Altern Energy Limited ALTN 327,000 - - 327,000 - - - - - -
Hub Power Company Limited HUBC 5,148,540 - - 4,307,140 841,400 67,034 57,358 (9,676) 0.65% 0.06%
K-Electric Limited*** KEL 22,488,000 - - 22,488,000 - - - - - -
Lalpir Power Limited LPL 7,202,500 - - 7,202,500 - - - - - -
Nishat Power Limited NPL 969,000 700,000 - 1,669,000 - - - - - -
841,400 67,034 57,358 (9,676) 0.65% 0.06%
Refinery
Attock Refinery Limited ATRL 481,400 1,590,239 - 1,055,639 1,016,000 159,151 178,592 19,441 2.01% 0.95%
Cnergyico PK Limited CNERGY - 7,034,600 - 7,034,600 - - - - - -
National Refinery Limited NRL 105,000 25,000 - 130,000 - - - - - -
Pakistan Refinery Limited PRL 2,463,500 500,000 - 2,963,500 - - - - - -
1,016,000 159,151 178,592 19,441 2.01% 0.95%
y & C
Air Link Communication Ltd AIRLINK - 3,381,000 - 350,000 3,031,000 173,992 122,422 (51,570) 1.38% 0.77%
Avanceon Limited AVN - 935,000 - 935,000 - - - - - -
Hum Network Limited** HUMNL - 15,950,000 - 9,750,000 6,200,000 43,215 44,144 929 0.50% 0.66%
Octopus Digital Limited OCTOPUS - 959,799 - 734,799 225,000 14,022 16,045 2,023 0.18% 0.16%
Pakistan Telecommunication Company Limited PTC - 3,729,500 - 3,729,500 - - - - - -
Systems Limited SYsS 250,000 542,687 - 292,687 500,000 156,148 164,930 8,782 1.86% 0.36%
TRG Pakistan Limited TRG 500,000 3,815,000 - 4,065,000 250,000 24,665 19,333 (5,332) 0.22% 0.05%
10,206,000 412,041 366,873 (45,168) 4.14% 2.01%
Textile Composite
Azgard Nine Limited ANL - 500,000 - 500,000 - - - - - -
Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited GATM 2,780,256 4,700,184 - 4,531,500 2,948,940 126,454 99,704 (26,750) 1.12% 0.48%
Interloop Limited ILP 2,808,110 1,634,231 - 3,579,655 862,686 58,808 52,624 (6,184) 0.59% 0.10%
Kohinoor Textile Mills Limited KTML 1,375,718 1,412,500 - 1,343,500 1,444,718 97,914 72,236 (25,678) 0.81% 0.48%
Nishat (Chunian) Limited NCL - 8,484,502 - 3,111,443 5,373,059 266,248 240,659 (25,589) 2.71% 2.24%
Nishat Mills Limited NML - 3,524,045 - 1,046,500 2,477,545 198,647 183,115 (15,532) 2.06% 0.70%
13,106,948 748,071 648,338 (99,733) 7.29% 4.00%
Textile Spinning
Gadoon Textile GADT - 29,000 - - 29,000 8,281 7,830 (451) 0.09% 0.10%
29,000 8,281 7,830 (451) 0.09% 0.10%
Transport
Pakistan International Bulk Terminal Limited PIBTL - 7,015,500 - 3,215,500 3,800,000 40,473 22,876 (17,597) 0.26% 0.21%
3,800,000 40,473 22,876 (17,597) 0.26% 0.21%
Total as at June 30, 2022 9,983,897 8,600,490  (1,383,399)
Total as at June 30, 2021 11,180,903 11,903,844 722,943

* These have a face value of Rs.5 per share.
** These have a face value of Rs.1 per share.
*** These have a face value of Rs.3.5 per share.

6.1.1 Following shares have been pledged with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) security against settlement of the Fund's trades in terms of Circular No. 11 dated October 23, 2007 issued

by SECP:

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,

2022 2021 2022 2021
--- (Number of shares) ---  -=--- (Rupees in '000) -----

The Hub Power Company Limited 750,000 2,000,000 51,127 159,340
Oil & Gas Development Company Limited 1,000,000 1,000,000 78,670 95,030
D.G Khan Cement Company Limited 2,000,000 - 125,000 -

3,750,000 3,000,000 254,797 254,370

6.1.2 As at June 30, 2022, the bonus shares of the Fund withheld by certain companies at the time of declaration of bonus shares amounted to Rs.3.764 (June 30, 2021: Rs. 4.590) million
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June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
Note ~ ------- (Rupees in '000) -------
DIVIDEND AND MARKUP RECEIVABLES
Dividend receivable 1,383 15,577
Markup receivable on bank balances 7.1 3,935 1,253
5,318 16,830

71 These include a markup receivable of Rs.3.039 million (2021: Rs.0.680 million) maintained with MCB
Bank Limited, a related party

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
Note ~ --—----- (Rupees in '000) -------
ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advance tax 7,708 4,213
Security deposits with NCCPL 2,500 2,500
Security deposits with CDC 500 500
Others 8.1 7,701 67,309
18,409 74,522

8.1 This include a receivable against collection account Nil Amount (2021: Rs.59.432 million) with MCB
Bank Limited and receivable of Rs.Nil (2021: Rs.0.005 million) from management company, the related

parties.
June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
Note  -———-- (Rupees in '000) -------
PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Remuneration payable 9.1 14,623 20,619
Sales tax on remuneration payable 9.2 1,901 2,681
Expenses allocated by the Management Company 9.3 731 1,031
Selling and Marketing expense 9.4 31,187 38,437
Sales load payable 21 848
48,463 63,616

9.1 The Management Company has charged remuneration at the rate of 2.00% (2021: 2.00%) of average
annual net assets of the Fund. The remuneration is paid to the Management Company on a monthly
basis in arrears.

9.2 Sales tax on management remuneration has been charged at the rate of 13% (2021: 13%).

9.3 In accordance with Regulation 60 of the NBFC Regulations, the Management Company is entitled to
charge fees and expenses related to registrar services, accounting, operation and valuation services,
related to a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) as per SECP vide SRO 639 dated June 20, 2019. The
Management Company has charged allocated expenses to the fund to the extent as it has think
expedient on its discretion subject to not being higher than actual expenses.

9.4 The SECP has allowed the Asset Management Companies to charge selling and marketing expenses
to all categories of open-end mutual funds (except fund of funds). The Management Company has
charged selling and marketing expenses to the fund to the extent as it has think expedient on its
discretion subject to not being higher than actual expenses.
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June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
10. PAYABLE TO THE TRUSTEE Note  --—---- (Rupees in '000) -------
Remuneration payable 101 814 1,113
Sales tax on remuneration payable 10.2 106 145
920 1,258
10.1 The Trustee, CDC is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the
provisions of the Trust Deed and Offering Documents as per the tariff specified therein, based on the
daily net asset value of the Fund. As per the Trust Deed and Offering Document the tariff structure
applicable to the Fund in respect of trustee fee is as follows:
Net assets value Tariff per annum
Upto Rs.1,000,000,000 0.20% per annum of Net Assets
On amount exceeding Rs.1,000,000,000 Rs.2,000,000 plus 0.10% on amount
exceeding Rs.1,000,000,000
10.2 Sindh Sales Tax at 13% (2021:13%) is charged on Trustee fee.
11. PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN (SECP)
This represents annual fee payable to SECP in accordance with Regulation 62 of the NBFC Regulations,
whereby the Fund is required to pay SECP an amount at the rate of 0.02% (2021: 0.02%) of the average daily
net assets of the Fund.
June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
Note ~ -—-—---- (Rupees in '000) -------
12. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) 12.1 - 120,605
Federal Excise Duty payable on management remuneration 122 54,774 54,774
Federal Excise Duty payable on sales load payable ' 3,933 3,933
Unclaimed dividends 9,722 9,722
Brokerage payable 5,527 9,821
Auditors' remuneration 624 624
Withholding tax payable 172 3,113
Printing and related charges payable 40 40
Payable to legal advisor 35 130
Other payable - 5
74,827 202,767
12.1  Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF)

Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) through its letter dated August 12, 2021 received on August 13, 2021 has
intimated Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan's (MUFAP) that the mutual funds do not qualify as
Financial Institutions / Industrial Establishments and are therefore, not liable to pay the Sindh Workers’
Welfare Fund (SWWF) contributions. This development was discussed at MUFAP level and was also
been taken up with the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). All the Asset
Management Companies, in consultation with SECP, have reversed the cumulative provision for
SWWEF recognised in the financial statements of the Funds till August 12, 2021 on August 13, 2021.
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12.2

SECP has also given its concurrence for recording reversal of provision of SWWF on the day letter was
received by MUFAP. This reversal of provision has contributed towards an unusual increase in NAV of
the Fund on August 13, 2021. This is one-off event and is not likely to be repeated in the future.

Going forward, no provision for SWWF would be recognised in the financial statements of the Fund.

Federal Excise Duty on remuneration to the Management Company

The Finance Act, 2013 enlarged the scope of Federal Excise Duty (FED) on financial services to
include Asset Management Companies (AMCs) with effect from June 13, 2013. As the asset
management services rendered by the Management Company of the Fund are already subject to
provincial sales tax on services levied by the Sindh Revenue Board, which is being charged to the
Fund, the Management Company is of the view that further levy of FED was not justified.

On September 04, 2013, a Constitutional Petition was filed in the Honourable Sindh High Court (SHC)
jointly by various Asset Management Companies, together with their representatives of Collective
Investment Schemes through their trustees, challenging the levy of FED.

During June 30, 2017, the SHC passed an order whereby all notices, proceedings taken or pending,
orders made, duty recovered or actions taken under the Federal Excise Act, 2005 in respect of the
rendering or providing of services (to the extent as challenged in any relevant petition) were set aside.
In response to this, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue has filed a Civil Petition for leave to
appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan which is pending adjudication.

With effect from July 01, 2016, FED on services provided or rendered by Non-Banking Financial
Institutions dealing in services which are subject to provincial sales tax has been withdrawn by the
Finance Act, 2016.

In view of the above, the Fund has discontinued making further provision in respect of FED on
remuneration of the Management Company with effect from July 01, 2016. However, as a matter of
abundant caution, the provision for FED made prior to this period has been maintained by the Fund
which at June 30, 2022 aggregates to Rs.54.77 (2021: Rs.54.77) million. Had the provision for FED not
been recorded in the financial statements of the Fund, the net assets value of the Fund as at June 30,
2022 would have been higher by Rs.0.57 (2021: Rs.0.46) per unit.

13. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

14.

15.

There were no contingencies and commitments outstanding as at the June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021.

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
------ (Rupees in '000) ------

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Annual audit fee 575 525
Half yearly review fee 315 315
890 840
Other services, taxes and out of pocket expenses 230 80
1,120 920

TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from income tax as per clause (99) of part | of the Second Schedule to the

Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting income available

for distribution for the year as reduced by capital gains whether realised or unrealised is distributed amongst
the unit holders by way of cash dividend. Furthermore, as per regulation 63 of the Non-Banking Finance

Companies and Notified Entities Regulation, 2008, the Fund is required to distribute 90% of the net accounting
income available for distribution other than capital gains to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt

from the provision of Section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the

Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Since the Fund has no distributable income, therefore no distribution has been
made by the Fund. Accordingly, no provision for taxation has been recognized in these financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

16.2 Transactions during the year:
Management Company

MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
Remuneration of the Management Company

Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company

Allocated expenses
Selling and marketing expenses

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Remuneration of the Trustee
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee
Central Depository Service charges

Group / associated companies

Arif Habib Capital Limited - Brokerage House
Brokerage expense*

MCB Bank Limited
Bank charges
Markup on balances with banks
Dividend income
Sale of securities having face value
of Nil (2021: Rs. 2500 million)
Purchase of 1,325,259 shares (2021: 2,269,357 shares)
Sale of 1,282,759 shares (2021: 5,100,499 shares)

Power Cement Limited
Purchase of Nil shares (2021: 18,966,500 shares)
Sale of 7,193,000 shares (2021: 11,773,500 shares)

Arif Habib Limited
Purchase of Nil shares (2021: 75,000 shares)
Sale of 68,000 shares (2021: 7,000 shares)

Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited
Sale of Nil (2021: 4,141,500) shares

Nishat Mills Limited

Dividend income

Purchase of 3,524,045 shares (2021: 4,636,500 shares)
Sale of 1,046,500 shares (2021: 4,636,500 shares)

Nishat Chunian Limited

Dividend income

Purchase of 8,484,502 shares (2021: 1,300,000 shares)
Sale of 3,111,443 shares (2021: 1,300,000 shares)

Nishat Chunian Power Limited
Purchase of Nil shares (2021: 500,000 shares)
Sale of Nil shares (2021: 500,000 shares)

Nishat Power Limited

Dividend income

Purchase of 700,000 shares (2021: 1,016,500 shares)
Sale of 1,669,000 shares (2021: 47,500 shares)

Pakgen Power Limited
Purchase of Nil shares (2021: 602,000 shares)
Sale of Nil shares (2021: 602,000 shares)

Adamjee Insurance Company Limited

Dividend income

Purchase of 65,000 shares (2021: 2,434,500 shares)
Sale of 1,099,500 shares (2021: 5,155,000 shares)

Aisha Steel Mills Limited
Dividend income
Sale of 9,588,030 shares (2021: 16,734,500 shares)

Purchase of 9,290,000 shares (2021: 21,123,500 shares)

Lalpir Power Limited

Dividend income

Sale of 7,202,500 shares (2021: 5,565,500 shares)
Purchase of Nil shares (2021: 8,668,000 shares)
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June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
-------- (Rupees in '000) --------

220,935 228,599
28,722 29,718
11,154 11,430

145,009 148,589
12,155 12,430

1,580 1,616
1,339 2,144
2,929 4,994
95 204
26,353 8,379
4 7,893

- 2,463,278
207,595 398,702
210,200 914,243
- 202,327
63,266 108,059
- 5,925

6,121 571

- 117,015

398 5,844

289,318 506,036
93,520 482,362
32,344 -

416,181 60,765

150,363 64,527

- 9,368
- 9,865
4,504 -
14,760 29,499
31,945 1,038
- 14,483
- 16,576
1,552 6,112
2,146 105,102
41,040 221,869
3,700 -
138,443 350,653
168,045 349,621
7,191 20,669
111,248 79,653
- 118,011
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June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
------ (Rupees in '000) ------
DG Khan Cement Company Limited

Dividend income 1,888 -
Purchase of 6,814,318 shares (2021: 6,461,080 shares) 533,743 733,722
Sale of 4,617,520 shares (2021: 4,609,600 shares) 376,908 510,785
Pak Elektron Limited

Purchase of 12,122,000 (including bonus shares) (2021: 10,153,000) shares 94,473 379,054
Sale of 6,122,000 (2021: 11,053,000) shares 126,909 429,461

Adamjee Life Insurance Company Limited
Purchase of 2,277,604 (2021: Nil) shares 63,766 -
Sale of 1,902,500 (2021: Nil) shares 41,229 -

16.3 Balances outstanding at year end:
Management Company

MCB - Arif Habib Savings and Investment Limited

Remuneration payable 14,623 20,619
Sindh sales tax payable on remuneration 1,901 2,681
Sales load payable including related taxes 21 848
Payable against allocated expense 731 1,031
Payable against marketing and selling expenses 31,187 38,437
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Remuneration payable 814 1,113
Sindh sales tax payable on remuneration 106 145
Security deposit 500 500

Group / associated companies

MCB Bank Limited

Bank balance** 246,826 219,105
Markup receivable on bank balances 3,039 680
Other receivable against collection account - 59,432

Arif Habib Limited
Brokerage payable* 300 776

D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited
4,048,278 shares (2021: 1,851,480 shares) 253,017 218,327

Power Cement Limited
Nil shares (2021: 7,193,000 shares) - 69,125

MCB Bank Limited

42,500 shares (2021: Nil shares) 5,227 -
Aisha Steel Mills Limited

4,687,030 shares (2021: 4,389,000 shares) 51,792 109,330

Pak Elektron Limited
6,000,000 shares (2021: Nil shares) 95,340 -

Arif Habib Limited
Nil shares (2021: 68,000 shares) - 5,516

Adamjee Life Insurance Company Limited
375,104 shares (2021: Nil shares) 8,556 -

Nishat Chunian Limited
5,373,058 shares (2021: Nil shares) 240,659 -

Nishat Mills Limited
2,477,545 shares (2021: Nil shares) 183,115 -

Lalpir Power Limited
Nil shares (2021: 7,202,500 shares) - 128,637

Nishat Power Limited
Nil shares (2021: 969,000 shares) - 19,041

* The amount disclosed represents the amount of brokerage paid / payable to connected persons and not the purchase or sale value of
securities transacted through them. The purchase or sale value has not been treated as transactions with connected persons as the
ultimate counter-parties are not connected persons.

** This represents balances held in current and in savings accounts carrying mark-up at the rate of 5.50% (2021: 5.50%) per annum.
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17. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Fund's financial performance.

The Fund's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, profit rate and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Risk of the Fund are being managed by the Pension Fund Manager
in accordance with the approved policies of the investment committee which provide broad guidelines for
management of above mention risks. The Board of Directors of the Pension Fund Manager has overall
responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Fund's risk management framework.

The Fund's primary financial assets comprise of balances with banks and at fair value through profit and loss
investments, comprising of equity securities of listed companies. The Fund also has dividend receivable, profit
receivable, deposits and other receivables. The Fund's principal financial liabilities include remuneration payable
to Management company, Trustee and SECP and accrued and other liabilities.

17.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as
a result of changes in market prices.

The Management Company manages market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securities by
following the internal risk management policies and investment guidelines approved by the Board and
regulations laid down by the SECP, the NBFC Regulations and the NBFC Rules.

Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
17.1.1 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund, at present is not exposed to
currency risk as all transactions were carried out in Pak Rupee.

17.1.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

a) Sensitivity analysis of variable rate instruments

Presently, the Fund does not hold any variable profit based investment except balances with
banks in deposit account exposing the Fund to cash flow profit rate risk. In case of 100 basis
points increase / decrease as on June 30, 2022, with all other variables held constant, the net
assets of the Fund and net income for the year would have been higher / lower by Rs.3.05
(2021: Rs.2.56) million.

b) Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

As at June 30, 2022 the Fund does not hold any fixed rate instruments, therefore, the Fund is
not exposed to fair value profit rate risk.

Profit rate sensitivity position for on balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier
of contractual repricing or maturity date. The composition of the fund's investment may
change over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as at June 30, 2022 is not
necessarily indicative of the impact on the Fund's net assets of future movements in profit
rates.
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June 30, 2022

Exposed to yield / interest rate risk

More than
Yield / three Not
effective months and exposed to
interest rate Upto three upto one More than interest rate
(%) months year one year risk Total
(Rupees in '000)
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial Assets
Balances with banks 5.50 - 17.05 305,003 - - 24,794 329,797
Investments classified as:
At fair value through profit or loss
- Listed equity securities - - - 8,600,490 8,600,490
Receivable against sale of investments - - - 148,458 148,458
Dividend and markup receivables - - - 5,318 5,318
Deposits and other receivables - - - 18,409 18,409
305,003 - - 8,797,469 9,102,473
Financial Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company - - - 46,562 46,562
Payable to the Trustee - - - 814 814
Payable against redemption of units - - - 386 386
Payable against purchase of investments - - - 100,314 100,314
Accrued and other liabilities - - - 15,948 15,948
- - - 164,024 164,024
On-balance sheet gap 305,003 - - 8,633,445 8,938,450
There is no off-balance sheet financial instrument that exist as at year ended June 30, 2022.
June 30, 2021
Exposed to yield / interest rate risk
More than
Yield / three Not
effective months and exposed to
interest rate Upto three upto one More than interest rate
(%) months year one year risk Total
(Rupees in '000)
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial Assets
Balances with banks 5.50 - 7.83% 244115 - - 21,217 265,332
Investments classified as:
At fair value through profit or loss
- Listed equity securities - - - 11,903,844 11,903,844
Available-for-sale
- Listed equity securities - - - - -
Receivable against sale of investments - - - 499,859 499,859
Dividend and markup receivables - - - 16,830 16,830
Deposits and other receivables - - - 70,309 70,309
244,115 - - 12,512,059 12,756,174
Financial Liabilities - - -
Payable to the Management Company - - - 60,936 60,936
Payable to the Trustee - - - 1,113 1,113
Payable against redemption of units - - - 69,140 69,140
Payable against purchase of investments - - - 24,138 24,138
Accrued and other liabilities - - - 20,296 20,296
- - - 175,622 175,622
On-balance sheet gap 244,115 - - 12,336,437 12,580,552

There is no off-balance sheet financial instrument that exist as at year ended June 30, 2021.
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17.2

17.1.3 Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest risk or currency risk)
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its
issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Fund has exposure to equity price risk arising from its investments in equity securities. The
Fund manages its price risk arising from investment in the equity securities by diversifying its
portfolio within the eligible limits prescribed in the Fund’'s constitutive documents, the NBFC
Regulations and circulars issued by SECP from time to time. The Fund’'s equity investments and
their fair values exposed to price risk as at the year end are concentrated in the sectors given in note
6.1.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit for the year and the unit holders' fund to an
increase or decrease of 5% in the fair values of the Fund’s equity securities. This level of change is
considered to be reasonably possible based on observation of current market conditions. The
sensitivity analysis is based on the Fund's equity securities at each statement of assets and liabilities
date, with all other variables held constant.

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
---- (Rupees in '000) ----

Investments 430,025 595,192
Income statement 430,025 595,192
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation or
commitment that it has entered into with the Fund, resulting in a financial loss to the Fund. The credit risk of
the Fund principally arises from deposits and other receivable balances.

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed in accordance with the Fund's
policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits
assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are approved by the Board of Directors. The limits
are set to minimize the concentration of risk and therefore mitigate financial loss through potential
counterparty failure.

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021
------ (Rupees in '000) ------

Balances with banks 329,797 265,332
Receivable against sale of investments 148,458 499,859
Dividend and markup receivables 5,318 16,830
Deposits and other receivables 18,409 70,309

501,982 852,330

All deposits with NCCPL and CDC are highly rated and risk of default is considered minimal.

The analysis below summaries the credit rating quality of the Fund's financial assets as at June 30, 2022
and June 30, 2021.
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17.3

June 30, June 30,
2022 2021

Bank balances by rating category %
AAA/AT+ 97.64% 97.45%
AA+AT+ 2.35% 2.54%
AA-/A1+ 0.00% 0.00%
A-/A2 0.01% 0.01%

100.00% 100.00%

Advances and deposits

Deposits are placed with NCCPL and CDC for the purpose of effecting transaction and settlement of listed
securities. It is expected that all securities deposited with NCCPL and CDC will be clearly identified as being
assets of the Fund, hence, the management believes that the Fund is not materially exposed to a credit risk
with respect to such parties.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Fund’s total credit exposure.
The Fund’s portfolio of financial instruments is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with
diverse credit-worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit risk.

Settlement risk

The Fund's activities may give rise to risk at the time of settlement of transactions. Settlement risk is the risk
of loss due to the failure of counter party to honour its obligations to deliver cash, securities or other assets
as contractually agreed. Credit risk relating to unsettled transactions in securities is considered to be
minimal as the Fund uses brokers with high creditworthiness and the transactions are settled or paid for
only upon delivery using central clearing system.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its
obligations in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

The Fund is exposed to daily cash redemptions, if any, at the option of unit holders. The Fund's approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when due under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Fund's reputation. Its policy is therefore to invest the majority of its assets in
investments that are traded in an active market and can be readily disposed and are considered readily
realisable.

The Fund has the ability to borrow in the short-term to ensure settlement. During the current year, the Fund
did not availed any borrowing. As per the NBFC Regulations the maximum amount available to the Fund
from the borrowing would be limited to fifteen percent of the net assets upto 90 days and would be secured
by the assets of the Fund and bear interest at commercial rates.
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In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund also has the ability to withhold daily redemption
requests in excess of ten percent of the units in issue and such requests would be treated as redemption
requests qualifying for being processed on the next business day. Such procedure would continue until the
outstanding redemption requests come down to a level below ten percent of the units then in issue. The
Fund did not withhold any redemptions during the year.

The table below analyses the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the statement of assets and liabilities date to the contractual maturity date. The

amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

More than More than
one month three months
Carrying Upto one upto three and upto one
value month months year
--------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----======mmmmmmuuun
Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 46,562 46,562 - -
Payable to the Trustee 814 814 - -
Payable against redemption of units 386 386 - -
Payable against purchase of investments 100,314 100,314 - -
Accrued and other liabilities 15,948 15,948 - -
164,024 164,024 - -
June 30, 2021
More than More than
one month three months
Carrying Upto one upto three and upto one
value month months year
--------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----======mmmmmmuuun
Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 60,936 60,936 - -
Payable to the Trustee 1,113 1,113 - -
Payable against redemption of units 69,140 69,140 - -
Payable against purchase of investments 24,138 24,138 - -
Accrued and other liabilities 20,296 20,296 - -
175,622 175,622 - -

June 30, 2022
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17.4

Financial instruments by category

Assets

Balances with banks

Investments

Dividend and markup receivables
Receivable against sale of investment
Deposits and other receivables

Liabilities

Payable to the Management Company
Payable to the Trustee

Payable against redemption of units
Payable against purchase of investments
Accrued and other liabilities

Assets

Balances with banks

Investments

Dividend and markup receivables
Receivable against sale of investment
Advances, deposits and other receivables

Liabilities

Payable to the Management Company
Payable to the Trustee

Payable against redemption of units
Payable against purchase of investments
Accrued and other liabilities

356

June 30, 2022

At fair value
through profit At amortised
or loss cost Total
------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------

- 329,797 329,797
8,600,490 - 8,600,490
- 5,318 5,318
- 148,458 148,458
- 18,409 18,409
8,600,490 501,982 9,102,473

June 30, 2022

At fair value
through profit At amortised
or loss cost Total
------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------

- 46,562 46,562
- 814 814
- 386 386
- 100,314 100,314
- 15,948 15,948
- 164,024 164,024

June 30, 2021

At fair value
through profit At amortised
or loss cost Total
tememmmm e (Rupees in '000) '-------------

- 265,332 265,332
11,903,844 - 11,903,844
- 16,830 16,830
- 499,859 499,859
- 70,309 70,309
11,903,844 852,330 12,756,174

June 30, 2021

At fair value
through profit At amortised
or loss cost Total
------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------

- 60,936 60,936
- 1,113 1,113
- 69,140 69,140
- 24,138 24,138
- 20,296 20,296
- 175,622 175,622
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18.

19.

UNIT HOLDERS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund's capital is represented by redeemable units. The Fund is required by the NBFC Regulations, to
maintain a minimum fund size of Rs.100 million, to be maintained all the time during the life of the scheme.
The units issued by the Fund provides an investor with the right to require redemption for cash at a value
proportionate to the unit holder's share in the Fund's net assets at the redemption date.

The Fund's objective in managing the unit holders' fund is to ensure a stable base to maximise returns to all
investors and to manage liquidity risk arising from redemption. In accordance with the risk management
policies, the Fund endeavours to invest the subscriptions received in appropriate investments while
maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemption, such liquidity being augmented by disposal of investments.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

IFRS 13 - 'Fair Value Measurement' establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurement where such measurements are required as
permitted by other IFRSs. It defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit
price).

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the
statement of assets and liabilities date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and financial
liabilities is considered not significantly different from book value.

The following table shows financial instruments recognized at fair value, analyzed between those whose fair
value is based on:

Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

Level 3: those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

As at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, the Fund held the following instruments measured at fair values:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(Rupees in '000)

June 30, 2022
At fair value through profit or loss 8,600,490 - - 8,600,490

June 30, 2021
At fair value through profit or loss 11,903,844 - - 11,903,844

During the year ended June 30, 2022, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value
measurements, and no transfer into and out of level 3 fair value measurements.

The Fund has not disclosed the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either
short term in nature or repriced periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation
of their fair values.

357 MCB PAKISTAN STOCK MARKET FUND




REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

20. SUPPLEMENTARY NON FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The information regarding pattern of unit holding, list of top ten brokers, meetings of the Board of Directors of
the management company and members of the Investment Committee are as follows:

201

20.2

Pattern of unit holding

Details of pattern of unit holding

Individuals

Insurance companies

Asset Management Company

Banks / DFls

Non Banking Finance
Companies (NBFCs)

Retirement funds

Other Companies

Associated Companies

Director

Others

Individuals
Insurance companies
Asset Management Company
Banks / DFls

Non Banking Finance
Companies (NBFCs)
Retirement funds
Other Companies
Associated Companies
Director
Others

June 30, 2022

Percentage
Number of Number of Investment of total
unit holders units held Amount investments
(Rupees in '000)
6,658 25,256,349 2,184,772 24.60%
9 3,190,447 275,986 3.10%
1 1,044,928 90,390 1.00%
3 39,267 3,397 0.04%
7 33,568 2,904 0.03%
59 25,317,277 2,190,043 24.70%
62 4,638,702 401,266 4.50%
5 41,172,165 3,561,552 40.10%
1 97,463 8,431 0.10%
751 1,810,236 156,592 1.80%
7,556 102,600,402 8,875,332 100.00%
June 30, 2021
Percentage
Number of Number of Investment of total
unit holders units held Amount investments
(Rupees in '000)
7,694 37,367,927 3,872,416 31.20%
12 8,836,360 915,707 7.40%
1 1,415,391 146,676 1.20%
3 39,267 4,069 0.03%
7 33,568 3,479 0.03%
67 25,223,500 2,613,896 21.10%
62 5,082,231 526,669 4.20%
8 38,400,099 3,979,379 32.10%
1 10 1 0.00%
52 3,231,625 334,891 2.70%
7,907 119,629,978 12,397,182 100.00%

Top ten brokers / dealers by percentage of commission paid

Details of commission paid by the fund to top ten brokers by percentage during the year are as follows:
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June 30,
2022
(Percentage)
1 Alfalah CLSA Securities (Private) Limited 6.82%
2 Arif Habib Limited 6.76%
3 JS Global Capital Limited 5.93%
4 Efg Hermes Pakistan Limited 5.92%
5 Intermarket Securities Limited 5.62%
6 Top Line Securities (Private) Limited 5.52%
7 DJM Securities Limited 5.42%
8 ISIQ Securities Limited 5.36%
9 BMA Capital Management Limited 4.52%
10 AKD Securities Limited 4.25%
June 30,
2021
(Percentage)
1 JS Global Capital Limited 6.90%
2 Arif Habib Limited 6.66%
3 Alfalah CLSA Securities (Private) Limited 6.46%
4 Efg Hermes Pakistan Limited 5.84%
5 Top Line Securities (Private) Limited 5.29%
6 DJM Securities Limited 4.72%
7 AKD Securities Limited 4.59%
8 Intermarket Securities Limited 4.23%
9 BMA Capital Management Limited 4.22%
10 Khadim Ali Shah Bukhari Securities (Private) Limited 4.19%

20.3 Attendance at meetings of the Board of Directors

The 168th, 169th, 170th, 171st, 172nd, 173rd, 174th, 175th,176th meetings of the Board of Directors
were held on August 09, 2021, September 15, 2021, October 18, 2021, October 22, 2021, February 03,
2022, February 08, 2022, March 10, 2022, April 13, 2022, May 04, 2022. respectively. Information in
respect of attendance by the directors and other persons in the meetings is given below:

Number of meetings

Leave Meeting not
Name of Director Held Attended granted attended

Mr. Haroun Rashid 9 8 1 176th
Mr. Nasim Beg 9 9 -
Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 9 8 1 170th
Mirza Qamar Beg 9 9 -
Syed Savail Meekal Hussain 9 8 1 170th
Mr. Kashif A. Habib 9 7 2 176th and 169th
Ms. Mavra Adil Khan 9 7 2 168th & 170th
Muhammad Sagib Saleem 9 9 -
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21.

22.

23

20.4 Particulars of investment committee and fund manager
Detail of members of the investment committee of the Fund are as follow:

Experience in

Name Designation Qualification years
1 Muhammad Saqib Saleem Chief Executive Officer FCCA, FCA 24.5
2  Muhammad Asim Chief Investment Officer MBA, CFA 19
3 Awais Abdul Sattar Portfolio Manager Equities MBA, CFA 11
4 Saad Ahmed Head Of Fixed Income MBA 16
5 Syed Abid Ali Head Of Equities MBA 14

20.5 Other funds managed by the fund manager
Mr. Awais Abdul Sattar is the Manager of the Fund as at year end.
TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

Total Expense Ratio of the Fund is 4.27% as on June 30, 2022 (2021 is 5.15%) and this includes 0.29% (2021:
0.85%) representing Government Levy, Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) and SECP fee.

GENERAL

22.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupee unless otherwise specified.

22.2 Corresponding figures have also been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for better
presentation. However, there has been no material reclassification to report.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on August 15 2022 by the Board of Directors
of the Management Company.

For MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
(the Management Company)

-

i iv;ﬁ;*:/ I s Y

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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No. of Unit Holders | Unit holdings [ Total units held |
3,271 A.001-10,000 100,133
2,314 B. 10,001 - 100,000 1,029,260
1,435 C. 100,001 -1000,000 5,662,343
536 D.1000,001 & Above 95,808,667
7,556 102,600,402

361 MCB PAKISTAN STOCK MARKET FUND
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Performance Information 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Total Net Assets Value — Rs. in million 8,875.3320 12,397.1820 8,803.8971 9,556.0000 10,113.0000
Net Assets value per unit — Rupees 86.5039 103.6294 77.4230 79.3006 94.8056
Closing Offer Price 89.4364 107.1424 80.0476 81.9889 98.0195
Closing Repurchase Price 83.5714 100.1164 74.7984 76.6123 94.8056
Highest offer price per unit 110.6947 111.0017 84.1621 101.2954 109.4173
Lowest offer price per unit 57.6102 81.0590 81.5497 80.4862 88.8802
Highest Redemption price per unit 107.0652 107.3621 81.4026 97.9741 105.8297
Lowest Redemption price per unit 56.6500 78.4012 78.8758 77.8472 85.9660

Distribution per unit — Rs. * - - - - -

Average Annual Return - %

One year -16.53 33.85 -2.37 -16.35 -7.51
Two year 8.660 15.74 -9.36 -11.93 11.02
Three year 4.98 5.04 -8.74 1.89 9.09
Net Income for the year — Rs. in million (1,816.9225) 3,073.7630 (164.2317) (1,943.1600) (693.6915)
Distribution made during the year — Rs. in million - - - - -
Accumulated Capital Growth — Rs. in million (1,816.9225) 3,073.7630 (1,943.1600) (693.6915)

* Date of Distribution

2022

Date | Rate
Nil

2021

Date | Rate
Nil

2020

Date | Rate
Nil

2019

Date | Rate
Nil

201 8 _

Date | Rate
Nil

Disclaimer
The past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investments and returns may go down, as well as
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PROXY ISSUED BY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

The Board of Directors of MCB - Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited (the Management
Company of MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund — MCB-PSM) has an overall responsibility for the
implementation of Proxy Voting Policy and Procedures which is available on the Management
Company’s website (www.mcbah.com).

During the financial year ended June 30, 2022, the Management Company on behalf of MCB-PSM
participated in fifteen (15) shareholders' meeting. The Management Company did not participate
in shareholders’ meetings in the cases which did not meet the criteria reported in Paragraph No.
5 and 6 of the Proxy Voting Policy and Procedures. Summary of actual proxies voted during the
financial year are as follows:

Reason for

Resolutions | For | Against | Abstain | Abstaining

Number 65 65 0 0 -
(%ages) 100 100 0 0 -

Detailed information regarding actual proxies voted by the Management Company on behalf of
MCB-PSM will be provided without any charges on request of unit holders.

363 MCB PAKISTAN STOCK MARKET FUND




MCB-Arif Habib Savings and Investments Limited
Head Office: 2nd Floor, Adamjee House, I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi
UAN: (+92-21) 11-11-62224 (11-11-MCB-AH)

URL: www.mcbah.com, Email: info@mcbah.com
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